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Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited completed 15 years of its dedicated services in 
2017. This journey started in 2002 to set a new trend of handling containers in Pakistan in order to 
become the most reliable Port gateway of international trade and to provide its customers with 
supply chain efficiencies so that it can become the container terminal of their choice.   

The transmission of the idea into reality can be clearly seen through the formidable volumes and 
results achieved. We feel proud in informing you that we are a part of the global terminal operators, 
International Container Terminal Services Inc. whose consistent supervision has enabled us to 
achieve our goals in such a short span of time. 

We also cherish on being the only listed container terminal in Pakistan and thank all our shareholders 
who place trust in us and promise you of our commitment to continue our “ SERVICE OF 
EXCELLENCE” for “Connecting Businesses” for “Pakistan”
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Be the container terminal of choice for trade at 
Karachi port

Vision



Mission
To be most reliable Port gateway of international 
trade with the commitment to provide customer 
centric services



We work hard at our tasks, believing in performing 
dutifully, and in committing to first-rate work. 
Beyond duty, we are willing to go the extra mile. Our 
company has no room for mediocrity. Focused, 
punctual and dedicated are a few indisputable 
attributes PICT employees possess

Diligence    

Our purpose in doing our work is to grow: grow as 
individuals, expand as a business, and progress as a 
global organisation. More than sustaining lives, we 
work because of self-worth and dignity. As we further 
improve ourselves personally and professionally, we 
believe that the stability and continuous growth of 
PICT follows

Growth

Core 



We care; we respect. We support each other to ensure that 
PICT remains viable, and that relations with stakeholders of 
the port community are stable. We work to sustain our 
families, pay our dues, or help a relative or a neighbor in need. 
We value and strive to promote workplace harmony, 
recognising the vital role that interdependence has played in 
PICT's ceaseless effort to achieve excellence

Compassion

We value our work and take responsibility for our 
actions. We also carry a positive attitude, believing 
that by working with optimism and self-fulfillment, we 
produce positive results for the company and for 
ourselves. PICT management and employees give 
worth to being employed

Accountability

Values 
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Profile of the Board 
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Mr. Christian R. Gonzalez is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Pakistan 
International Container Terminal Limited. Being part of the International Container Terminal 
Services Inc. (ICTSI) group companies since 1997, he has held various senior positions in the 
group including his current role as Senior Vice President and Regional Head of Asia Pacific & 
Manila International Container Terminal (MICT) of International Container Terminal Services, 
Inc. (ICTSI) since November 9, 2015. He is also a director of several other ICTSI group  
companies.

Mr. Gonzalez is a graduate of Instituto de Estudios Superiores de la Empresa (IESE) Business 
School, the graduate school of management of the University of Navarra, in Barcelona, 
Spain, where he received his Bilingual Masters in Business Administration. He is also a 
graduate of Business Administration from Pepperdine University in California.

Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes, being a Certified Public Accountant, has over 40 years of rich 
experience in audit and advisory services for different industries such as utilities, power 
generation, port services, land transport, broadcasting, real estate, oil refinery, steel 
manufacturing and banks.

Mr. Reyes was a Senior Partner and Vice Chairman for Client Services at SyCip Gorres Velayo 
& Co. (SGV) as well as the head of SGV's Japan Business Services as well as the head of 
SGV's highest revenue generating business unit. 

Mr. Reyes obtained his Bachelor's degree in Commerce, major in Accounting from San Beda 
College and a Master's degree in Business Administration, concentration in Finance from the 
University of Detroit, Michigan, USA.

Mr. Rafael D. Consing Jr. is the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of ICTSI. 
Concurrently, he is also the Compliance Officer of ICTSI, Director of ICTSI Capital B.V. and a 
member of the Board of Directors of the multiple ICTSI group companies.

From 1999 to 2007, he assumed various roles at HSBC, including Director and the Head of 
Debt Capital Markets for the Philippines, and subsequently for South East Asia, and later on 
as the Managing Director and Head of the Financing Solutions Group, Asia Pacific. In HSBC,              
Mr. Consing was involved in strategic and situational financing advisory activities, including 
acquisition and leveraged finance, debt capital markets, credit ratings and capital advisory. 
He also held positions in investment banking with Bankers Trust NY / Deutsche Bank and ING 
Barings. In 1993 to 1995, Mr. Consing served as the Vice President and the Treasurer of 
Aboitiz & Company, Inc. and Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. Mr. Consing received his A.B 
degree, major in Political Science, from the De La Salle University, Manila in 1989. He is an 
alumnus of the Emerging CFO: Strategic Financial Leadership Program of the Stanford 
Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui is the Chief Executive Officer of Pakistan International Bulk 
Terminal Limited which is Pakistan's first bulk terminal for handling cement, clinker and coal. 
He joined the Marine Group of Companies in 1997 and was involved in various Group 
Ventures. He has also served as Project Director and Chief Operating Officer at PICT from 
2002 till 2012.

Mr. Sharique has also served as CEO of Marine International Container Terminal and headed 
the implementation of the project which comprises of an Inland Container Depot in Lahore 
with direct Railways connectivity for operating dedicated freight trains between Karachi and 
Lahore.

Mr. Sharique did his Bachelors and Masters of Arts in Economics from Tufts University 
Boston, USA.
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Mr. Gordon Alan P Joseph is the Honorary Consul of Kingdom of the Netherlands to the 
Philippines, and concurrently the Chariman of the Executive Committee of the Metro Cebu 
Development Coordinating Board. He is also the largest sharehoIder and CEO of Philpacific 
Insurance Brokers, Inc., one of the 10 largest insurance and reinsurance brokers in the 
Philippines.

Mr. Joseph was appointed as a director on the board on February 9, 2018 after the 
resignation of  Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus.

Mr. Joseph has a Bachelor's degree from De La Salle University, Manila in 1979.

Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus is ICTSI's Vice President for Business Development - Asia, a 

position which he holds since September 2008. Concurrently, he is also a director of several 

other ICTSI group companies.

Mr.  De Jesus joined ICTSI group in 1995 and has held various senior positions including 

Director of Business Development for the Americas, Head of the Asia Business Development 

Group, Director for Strategic Planning of ICTSI's Regional Development Offices in Miami and 

Dubai, and General Manager of Thai Laemchabang Terminals, Inc. Mr. De Jesus is an 

Industrial Management Engineering graduate of De La Salle University, Manila.

Mr.  De Jesus resigned from the board effective on February 9, 2018.

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen has over 30 years of international experience within the Port, 

Shipping & Logistic industry. Mr. Madsen is the Senior Vice President, Regional Head for 

Europe and Middle East and Acting Regional Head-Africa of International Container Terminal 

Services Inc. Alongside, he is a Director of several other ICTSI group companies.

Prior to joining ICTSI, Mr. Madsen was Vice President for Business Development at APM 

Terminals Zeebrugge N.V. He was also Chairman of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (GPPL) and 

has also served as a Director of Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited and GPPL.

Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui is the Managing Director of the Marine Group of Companies. He 
has been engaged with the shipping and cargo handling industry for the last twenty four years 
and has been with PICT since its inception. He was instrumental in arranging all financing 
requirements of PICT including IFC and OFID and has played an instrumental role in the 
project roll out of PICT.

Mr. Aasim is also engaged in the development sector and has founded the Organization for 
Social Development Initiatives (OSDI) with an objective to improve the living conditions in the 
rural areas of Pakistan. He has also founded corporate sector’s first and leading exhibition 
organizing company in Pakistan, Pegasus. Mr. Aasim did his BSC (hons) from London School 
of Economics and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Clark 
University, USA.

of Directors
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It is indeed an immense pleasure to welcome our esteemed shareholders to the 17th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and to present Company's annual report and audited financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2017. 

A good Board pressure tests strategy, provides leadership on matters of governance and ensures their 
company is equipped to handle risk. In 2017 your company faced and overcame various challenges in 
all these areas, confirming my strong belief that this is a Company set well to succeed in challenging 
times.

Industry and Business Overview alongwith future outlook

2017 has been another year of challenge. Due to global consolidation of shipping lines, increase in 
vessel sizes and emergence of excess handling capacity at Karachi Port, the business environment is 
expected to remain competitive in the coming years. Your Company has been responding effectively to 
the challenges faced and has been making concentrated efforts to secure enough volumes ensuring 
the financial and operational sustainability.

Review of Financial Performance

I am pleased with the efforts made by the management of the Company for maintaining sustainable 
volume handling together with the increased revenues during the year ended December 31, 2017,
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despite fierce competition and severe congestion at Karachi port. Due to optimal utilisation of 
resources and strict cost containment approach, your Company ended the year with Earnings per 
share of Rs. 25.63. 

Dividend Appropriation 

In order to maintain a steady stream of income for the shareholders, the Directors of the Company have 
recommended final cash dividend @ 64.3% (Rs. 6.43/- per ordinary share) for the year ended 
December 31, 2017.

Governance and Culture – Review of Board's performance

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to maintain effective oversight of the operations of the 
Company through quarterly meetings of the Board and its committees. Our governance strategy is to 
ensure that appropriate processes, procedures and standards are in place, we have the best 
individuals leading at the top, working collaboratively to achieve our vision for the Company.

The Board, met four times during the year to discuss the performance and future strategy for the 
business in the competitive environment. In addition to this the Board has constituted an independent 
audit committee and a human resource and remuneration committee to further strengthen the 
governance of the Company.

The Board carried out self-evaluation of its own performance during the year and found its 
performance to be satisfactory. The overall aim was to measure the current performance of the Board 
and identify areas for improvement in future years. We all found it to be an insightful and valuable 
development for our Board.

The Board received comprehensive agendas and supporting papers in a timely manner for its Board 
meetings. All the Directors, including the Independent Director, fully participated in and made 
contributions to the decision-making process of the Board.

The Audit Committee and Human Resources & Remuneration Committee of the Board met regularly to 
strengthen the functions of the board. The company has an independent Internal Audit department, 
which leads the Internal Audit function and follows a risk based Audit methodology. Audit reports are 
presented to the Board for review and actions where necessary.

Acknowledgments

I would like to acknowledge and particularly thank our CEO, Mr. Khurram Khan, his executive 
leadership team and all the employees of the Company for their hard work, commitment and 
leadership in steering the Company into a new era of challenges.

Lastly, I would also like to thank the Board for its hard work and commitment to the Company, and to 
thank you, our valued shareholders, for your continuing trust in our Company.

Christian R. Gonzalez
Chairman of the Board 
February 23, 2018

Review
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We the undersigned for and on behalf of the Board of Directors are pleased to present the Annual 
Report of your Company alongwith the financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 
2017 and auditors' report thereon.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Pakistan's economy has continued to be volatile, lacking a steady growth path adding to the economic 
uncertainty about the country's economic conditions. The business environment remained 
challenging majorly due to vessel upsizing, consolidation of shipping lines, transporters' strikes and 
increased competition during the year.

Despite tough conditions your Company managed to retain sustainable market share and handled 
525,653 containers resulting in a decline by 8% as compared to the previous year. The decline in 
handling is majorly attributable to congestion at Karachi port due to transporters' strike in second 
quarter of the year. 

Despite decrease in volume handled, the Company's turnover remained inline with the last year majorly 
due to increase in storage revenue. The business environment remains challenging and competitive. 
Higher cost of services due to inflationary impacts have resulted in gross profit of Rs. 4,546 million for
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the year which has decreased slightly by 2% as compared to last year. After accounting for finance cost 
and taxation, the Company has produced net profit of Rs. 2,798 million which is 2% higher as 
compared to last year.

Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

Un appropriated profit brought forward

Profit available for appropriation

APPROPRIATIONS AND DIVIDEND

-                Final cash dividend for the year end December 31, 2016 @

                Rs. 6.3 per share (December 31, 2015 @ Rs. 9 per share)

-                Interim cash dividends for the year end December 31, 2017 @

                Rs. 17.55 per share (December 31, 2016 @ Rs. 21.2 per share)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 

Basic and Diluted EPS

2017 2016
(Rs. in millions)

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

9,295

4,627

4,137

2,749

1,422

4,171

(982)

(2,314)

874

25.18

9,291

4,546

4,169

2,798

874

3,672

(688)

(1,916)

1,069

25.63

It is a source of comfort that your Company has been listed among the top 25 companies by the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) consecutively for the fourth year for the year 2016.

Further, your Company has won “Corporate Excellence Award” by Management Association of 
Pakistan. In addition, the Company also managed to secure “Best HRM Practices” and “5th Employer 
of the Year Award” by Employers' Federation of Pakistan (EFP) during the year 2017.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Despite numerous challenges that include increasing competition at the Karachi Port in the 
foreseeable future, the Company remains committed to driving the business forward in line with its 
historical achievements. The company endeavours to mitigate the effect of the competition through 
maximization of efficiencies and further improvement in services to the customers.

CORPORATE AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

13

Report 



The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on February 23, 2018, have proposed a 
final cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017 of 64.3% i.e. Rs 6.43/- per ordinary share 
(2016: Rs 6.3 per ordinary share). This is in addition to the interim cash dividends amounting to a total 
of Rs 17.55 per ordinary share paid during the year.

thThe proposal of the final cash dividend is subject to the approval of the members at the 17  Annual 
General Meeting to be held on April 19, 2018. These financial statements do not include the effect of 
above proposal which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved by the members.

IMPACT OF THE BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

Your Company is an ISO 14001 certified company and is fully committed to perform the operations in a 
manner that protects the health and safety of its employees, associated persons and visitors while 
complying with applicable Health, Safety and Environmental laws and regulations.

Various initiatives have been taken by the Company for the protection of environment which includes:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Reducing Emissions:
Subsequent to conversion of diesel operated port equipment into electrically operated, the 
same are being continuously maintained to reduce emissions.

Waste Management:
A waste management procedure is in place according to which waste collection is performed 
with segregation between the hazardous and non-hazardous category and accordingly properly 
disposed off. 

Sewerage Treatment Plant:
Your Company has two Sewerage Treatment Plants which are in operation to treat the waste 
prior to disposal. Samples of their effluents are also tested on set frequency to ensure the 
effectiveness of their performance.

Oil Spill Control:
Your Company has established documented procedure regarding oil spill control. In this respect, 
secondary containment trays and other arrangements are also made available. Furthermore, 
drills are carried out regularly to demonstrate the spill control activity.

Energy Conservation:
Your Company is also focused towards energy conservation. In this area, different initiatives have 
been taken like replacement of equipment and yard high intensity lights with LED lights, reduction 
of paper usage through introducing thermal printers etc.

Annual Report 201714
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Your Company continuously makes efforts to enhance the environmental compliance level within the 
terminal. Your company has also formed a green belt inside the terminal which helps in decreasing the 
carbon foot prints.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company considers social, environmental and ethical matters in the context of the overall 
business environment. The Company is committed to work in the best interest of all the stakeholders in 
particular the community in which we live and forms our customer base. In addition to its regular 
donations to Rabia Azim Trust (an associated undertaking) for financial assistance of an adopted 
school for underprivileged children in its neighbouring community, your company actively participate in 
increasing the social awareness and other related activities. A glimpse of the following events, where 
your Company played a key role as a responsible corporate social citizen, during the year is presented 
below:

Blood Donation Camp
A blood donation camp was set up in co-ordination with Indus 
Hospital in February 2017 where employees of the company 
volunteered to donate blood to the needy patients. The camp 
included two awareness sessions to enable the employees to 
understand the importance and need of blood donation and 
to make them “PROUD TO BE SOMEONE's LIFELINE”.

Report 

Hepatitis Awareness Session
The session was conducted in collaboration with Dr. Sabeen 
Shah (Head of Hepatitis program) from Indus Hospital in July 
2017. The focus of the session was to create awareness 
regarding Hepatitis which, according to a recent health survey 
has been named as 'a silent storm' due to its rising trend.

Visit at Dar Ul Sukun
Representatives from your Company visited Dar ul Sukun, a 
place for mentally disabled people in November 2017 where 
they got involved in different activities with the special people 
such as helping them in their routine work, listening to their 
concerns, preparing drawings with them, serving meals, 
helping them in performing their different physical exercises 
and distributing gifts. 



INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors acknowledges their responsibility towards the implementation of an effective 
internal control environment throughout the organisation. The Company has set up an efficient and 
effective Internal Audit function which rigorously monitors the control environment of the Company. 
This department conducts comprehensive quarterly reviews of the activities of your Company. The 
broad target of the said reviews is operational efficiency, safeguard of profitability and Company's 
interests, establishment and observance of internal controls and providing consultation on various 
issues on an ongoing basis.

The activities of the internal audit department are overseen by the Audit Committee which regularly 
monitors the performance of the department through review of the internal audit reports on quarterly 
basis and accordingly apprises the Board of its findings and resolutions of identified control 
deficiencies.
The Board review the Company's financial operations and position at regular intervals by means of 
interim accounts, reports, and other financial and statistical information. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
The Pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2017 is annexed to this Report.
The Directors, executives and their spouses and minor children have made no transactions in the 
Company's shares during the year, except those reported in the pattern of shareholding.

Executives means Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal 
Auditor, Company Secretary and other persons designated as executives by the Board.

PARENT COMPANY
Your Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited, whereas its ultimate Parent Company is 
International Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated in Manila, Philippines.

AUDITORS
The present auditors, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants stand retired at the conclusion of 
upcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment. The 
Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors for the year ending 
December 31, 2018 and the Board has endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES AND ITS MITIGATIONS
The Company addresses risks individually in the course of its business operations. The management 
determines risk response strategies for such risks which includes avoid, transfer, reduce or accept 
strategy. Financial risk has been described in detail in notes to the financial statements that covers 
credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

Annual Report 201716
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* Subsequent to December 31, 2017, Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus resigned on February 9, 2018 in 
whose place Mr. Gordon Allan P. Joseph was appointed by the Board. The Board places on record its 
appreciation for the contributions made by Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus during his tenure on the 
Board and welcomes Mr. Gordon Allan P. Joseph.

Leave of absence was granted to those Directors who could not attend some of the Board and 
Committee meetings. The second quarter Board meeting was held in Manila, Philippines. 

The Directors of your Company will be completing their tenure in office on February 24, 2018 and will 
stand retire and may offer themselves for re-election. 

During the year, no remuneration / fee was paid to the Directors by the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Governance set out by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited in the Rule Book of PSX, relevant for the year 
ended December 31, 2017 have been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed with 
the Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As of the date of the Directors' Report, the Board of Directors comprises of five non-executive directors 
and two independent directors. All the directors take keen interest in the proper stewardship of the 
Company's affairs. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan resigned 
during the year in whose place Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan was appointed by the Board with effect from 
July 1, 2017. The Board places on record its appreciation for the contributions made by Capt. Zafar 
Iqbal Awan to the progress of the Company since its inception.

During the year, four Board Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings and two Human Resource and 
Remuneration [HR&R] Committee Meetings were held. The names of Directors and their attendance in 
Board and Committee meetings held during the year are presented below:

Name of Director
Member of

Audit 
Committee

Audit 
CommitteeBoard

S.No 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8

Mr. Christian R. Gonzalez
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen
Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes
Mr. Rafael D. Consing Jr
Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus *
Mr. Gordon Allan P. Joseph *

Meetings Attended

HR & R
Committee

HR & R
Committee

P 
- 
P 
P 
- 
- 
- 
- 

4
4
4
2
4
2
4
-

-
-
4
-
4
3
-
-

2
-
2
1
-
-
-
-

- 
- 
P

- 
P 
P  
- 
- 
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CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of 
affairs fairly, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the Rule Book of PSX.

A summary of key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed to this Report.

Information about contribution to national exchequer in the form of taxes and levies is given in the 
respective notes to the Financial Statements.

The Company operates a contributory Provident Fund Scheme for all the eligible employees. 

The value of its investments based on the audited accounts as at June 30, 2017 is Rs. 347 million.

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

CODE OF CONDUCT
The underlying values of the Company's Code of Conduct are based on honesty, integrity and 
openness along with respect for human rights and interests of the employees. The Company's Code 
of Conduct promotes guidelines on various ethical standards including issues such as conflict of 
interest, employee rights etc. The Board ensures that Code is disseminated to, understood and 
observed by employees. The responsibility for day to day implementation and monitoring of the Code 
is delegated to the senior management. The Code is also available on the Company's website.

All Directors of the Company as of December 31, 2017 have already obtained Directors' Training 
certification. 

As required by Code of Corporate Governance, Audit Committee also met with external auditors 
without Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between December 31, 2017 and the date of this report except the 
proposal of final dividend which is subject to approval by the Members at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. The effect of such declaration shall be reflected in the next year's financial 
statements.

COMMUNICATION
Communication with the members is given high priority. Annual reports are distributed to them within 
the time specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The Company also has a website,  www.pict.com.pk
which contains up to date information on Company's activities and financial reports.

CHAIRMANS' REVIEW
The Chairman's review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance of the 
Company and its Board of Directors for the year ended December 31, 2017. The Board of Directors 
endorses the contents of the Chairman's Review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Our people are the key drivers behind the sustainable turnover of the Company. The Board 
acknowledges the contribution of each and every employee of the Company. The Board also places on 
record its sincere gratitude to extremely valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and 
financial institutions for their support, confidence and cooperation which enables the Company to 
sustain the competitive environment. We would also like to thank all our concerned regulatory 
authorities for their prompt guidance and support. This continued support gives us confidence and 
courage and we remain committed to achieve excellence in all areas of activity.

Thanking you all

On behalf of the Board of Directors

 
Karachi, 
Dated: February 23, 2018

Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

Mr. Christian R. Gonzalez 
Chairman of the Board 
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Key Operating & Financial Data

 December 
31, 2017 

 December 
31, 2016

 December 
31, 2015

 December 
31, 2014

 December 
31, 2013

Half Year 
Ended 

December 
31, 2012

June 30, 
2012

9,295.47

4,627.48

4,137.17

2,748.62

2,145.88

-

1,999.35

2,494.51

1,319.79

4,640.39

25.18

19.66

113.59

0:100

9,291.44

4,545.97

4,168.82

2,797.87

2,340.45

-

1,452.16

1,837.74

1,205.16

4,178.20

25.63

21.44

124.73

0:100

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (Rs. in Millions)

Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

BALANCE SHEET (Rs. in Millions)

Share Holder's Equity

Long term Loans

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Current Assets

Total Assets

RATIOS 

Earnings Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Break up Value Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Return on Equity (%)

Debt Equity Ratio

8,828.24

4,285.16

3,731.67

2,456.58

2,693.68

298.76

1,940.07

2,873.68

1,854.84

5,567.36

22.51

24.68

93.09

10:90

7,921.66 

3,507.88 

2,997.12 

2,086.31 

 

2,583.90 

896.27 

1,898.23 

3,572.95 

1,988.84 

6,156.84 

 

19.11 

23.67 

77.65 

26:74 

7,974.39 

4,012.57 

3,249.49 

2,250.78 

 

2,789.80 

1,493.77 

2,392.44 

4,873.97 

2,952.96 

7,663.77 

 

20.62 

25.56 

64.44 

35:65 

3,083.43 

1,384.10 

1,051.21 

667.65 

 

4,195.65 

1,484.53 

1,296.37 

3,896.43 

2,955.33 

8,092.08 

 

6.12 

38.44 

16.89 

32:68 

6,692.31 

2,966.43 

2,170.82 

1,410.04 

 

3,708.00 

1,732.17 

1,430.91 

4,291.76 

2,751.65 

7,999.76 

 

12.75 

32.32 

33.62 

40:60 
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Statement of Compliance with the 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Annual Report 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contained in 
Regulation No. 5.19 of Rule book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a 
framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of 
corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors 
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors (the Board). As at December 31, 2017, the Board 
includes:

1.

The independent director meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG.

Name
Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes
Mr. Christian R. Gonzalez 
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui
Mr. Jose Manuel M. De Jesus  
Mr. Rafael D. Consing Jr. 
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen  

Category
Independent Director
Non - Executive Directors

22

2.

3.

4.

6.

5.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in 
payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a Broker of a stock exchange, has 
been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange. 

During the year, no casual vacancy occurred on the Board.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, corporate values, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO, have 
been taken by the Board/shareholders.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board 
meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. 
The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. 

All directors of the Company have obtained directors' training certification in accordance with the 
requirement of the CCG. 

The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Executive Officer [CEO]. There has been no change in the 
position of the Chief Financial Officer [CFO], Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year.

The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and 
fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed. 

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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12.

13.

14.

16.

15.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the 
Board.

The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding. 

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG. 

The Board has formed an Audit Committee (the Committee). It comprises three members of whom all are 
non-executive directors and the Chairman of the Committee is an Independent director. 

The meetings of the Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the Committee have been 
formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee. It comprises of three 
members, of whom all are non-executive directors and the chairman of HR&R Committee is a non-executive 
director.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and experienced 
for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.   

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or 
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that 
the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines 
on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

The 'Closed period', prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may 
materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors, 
employees and stock exchange. 

Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through 
stock exchange.

The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having 
access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained 
proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the CCG have been complied with.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

 
Karachi, 
Dated: February 23, 2018

Mr. Christian R. Gonzalez 
Chairman of the Board 

Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Code of  Corporate Governance 
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Balance Sheet 
As at December 31, 2017

3,262,116
56,935

1,547
3,320,598

337,340
302,068
43,517

174,162
-

462,705
1,319,792

4,640,390

1,091,532
1,054,350
2,145,882

443,829
51,327

495,156

1,565,560
85,195

1,816
298,755
48,026

1,999,352

4,640,390

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
          Property, plant and equipment
          Intangibles
          Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
          Stores, spare parts and loose tools – net
          Trade debts – net
          Advances
          Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
          Short-term investments – net
          Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
          Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
          Reserves

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
           Deferred taxation – net 
          Long-term employee benefits 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
          Trade and other payables
          Unpaid and unclaimed dividends
          Accrued markup
          Current maturity of long-term financing
          Taxation – net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

4
5

6
7
8
9
10
11

12

13
14

15

16

 
2,921,044

43,270
8,729

2,973,043

509,258
335,914
17,231

179,908
-

162,854
1,205,165

4,178,208

1,091,532
1,248,925
2,340,457

332,127
53,458

385,585

1,387,344
45,790

-
-

19,032
1,452,166

4,178,208
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Revenue – net

Cost of services

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance cost

Other income

Profit before taxation

Taxation 

Profit after taxation

Earnings per ordinary share – basic and diluted

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

9,295,474

(4,667,997)

4,627,477

(422,773)

            (92,062)

            (46,942)

71,472

4,137,172

(1,388,549)

2,748,623

17

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23

24 

-----------(Rupees) -----------

25 .18

9,291,440

(4,745,471)

4,545,969

(427,592)

(8,162)

(8,543)

67,150

4,168,822

(1,370,944)

2,797,878

25 .63
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Statement of Comprehensive 
Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2,797,878

          -   

2,797,878

Profit after taxation 
 
Other comprehensive income  
 
Total comprehensive income

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

        2,748,623

-

        2,748,623
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4,377,861

(1,511,640)
(7,958)

(10,359)
(7,182)

2,840,722

(270,358)
25,570
45,678

(199,110)

(298,755)
(2,642,708)
(2,941,463)

(299,851)

462,705

162,854

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended December 31, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Taxes paid          
Long-term employee benefits paid          
Finance cost paid          
Long-term deposits          

          Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure          
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets          
Markup on saving accounts received          

          Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long-term financing           
Dividends paid           

          Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

29 

14

4.1.1 

11 

5,190,402

(1,541,929)
(2,121)

(50,681)
-

3,595,671

(183,906)
13,480
62,069

(108,357)

(597,511)
(3,243,450)
(3,840,961)

(353,647)

816,352

462,705
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended December 31, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance as at December 31, 2015

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income

Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2015 
   @ Rs 9/- per ordinary share

Interim cash dividend for the year   
   ended December 31, 2016 
   @ Rs 21.2/- per ordinary share  

Balance as at December 31, 2016

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income

Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2016 
   @ Rs 6.3/- per ordinary share

Interim cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2017 
   @ Rs 17.55/- per ordinary share

Balance as at December 31, 2017

1,091,532

-
-
-

-

-

1,091,532

-
-
-

-

-

1,091,532  

180,000

-
-
-

-

-

180,000

-
-
-

-

-

180,000

1,422,152

2,748,623
-

2,748,623

(982,378)

(2,314,047)

874,350

2,797,878
-

2,797,878

(687,665)

(1,915,638)

        1,068,925

1,602,152

2,748,623
-

2,748,623

(982,378)

(2,314,047)

1,054,350

2,797,878
-

2,797,878

(687,665)

(1,915,638)

1,248,925

2,693,684

2,748,623
-

2,748,623

(982,378)

(2,314,047)

2,145,882

2,797,878
-

2,797,878

(687,665)

(1,915,638)

2,340,457   

                                                   ------------------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ----------------------

Capital 
redemption 
reserve fund

Reserves 

Unappropriated 
profit Total reserves

Total 
Issued, 

subscribed
and paid-up

capital
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND OPERATIONS

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a 
private limited company in June 2002. Subsequently, it was converted to an unquoted public limited 
company and later on, listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on October 15, 2003. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at Berths no. 6 to 9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi.

The Company has a Build Operate Transfer (BOT) contract with Karachi Port Trust (KPT) for the 
exclusive construction, development, operations and management of a common user container 
terminal at Karachi Port for a period of twenty-one years commencing June 18, 2002. After the expiry 
date, the Company will transfer all the concession assets to KPT as disclosed in note 34 to these 
financial statements.

The Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited whereas its ultimate parent company is 
International Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated in Manila, Philippines.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
 
Statement of compliance

Effective May 31, 2017, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has been promulgated, however, 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its circular no. 23 of 2017 dated 
October 04, 2017 communicated its decision that the companies whose financial year closes on or 
before December 31, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions 
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Accordingly, the Company's financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 have been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of and directives issued under the repealed Ordinance and approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the repealed Ordinance. In case requirements differ, the 
provisions or directives of the repealed Ordinance shall prevail.

The SECP in pursuance of the S.R.O No. 24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has given relaxation for 
the implementation of IFRIC 12 – “Service Concession Arrangements” due to the practical difficulties 
facing the companies. The impact on the financials results of the Company due to application of IFRIC-
12 is disclosed in note 34 to these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
specifically stated.

New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations

New amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretation which became 
effective during the year ended December 31, 2017

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with 
those of the previous financial year except as described below:

1. 

1. 1.

1. 2.

1. 3.

2.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.3.1.
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2.3.2.

New and amended standards

The Company has adopted the following revised standards and amendments of IFRSs which 
became effective for the current year:

IAS 7 – Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)
IAS 12 – Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendment)

There were certain other amendments to IFRSs which became effective during the current year but 
are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company's operations and are, 
therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.
  
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle       

IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of disclosure 
requirements (Amendment).

There were certain other improvements to the IFRSs which became effective during the current year 
but are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company's operations and 
are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

The adoption of the above revised standards, amendments and improvements does not have any 
material effect on these financial statements.
     
Standards, amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards that are 
not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments and improvements with respect to the approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned 
below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date  
    (annual periods 

    beginning
on or after) 

IFRS 2

IFRS 4

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payment 
Transactions (Amendment)

Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
with IFRS 4 Contracts – (Amendments)

Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)

Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

 
01 January 2018

01 January 2018

01 July 2018

01 January 2019

Not yet finalised
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IFRS 15

IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

01 July 2018

01 January 2018

01 January 2018

01 January 2019

01 January 2018

There are certain other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new 
interpretation but are considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company's 
operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

The Company expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the 
standards will not affect the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. 

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

01 January 2016
01 January 2019
01 January 2021

Standard
IFRS-14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS-16 – Leases
IFRS-17 – Insurance Contracts

2.4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the 
Company's accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates and judgments 
which are significant to the financial statements:

a) 

b) 

c)

determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of operating fixed 
assets (note 4.1);

determining the method of amortisation, residual values and useful lives of intangibles (note 5.1);

determining the provision for obsolescence of stores, spare parts and loose tools (note 6);

The Company expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on the 
Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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3.1.2. 

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
Property, plant and equipment

3.1.1. Operating fixed assets

3.1.

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

determining the provision against doubtful debts (note 7); 

calculating the provision for impairment in short-term investments (note 10);

recognition of deferred taxation (note 13); and

expected outcome of contingencies involving the Company (note 16).

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. 

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account using straight line method so as to write 
off the historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to these financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month 
in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the month the respective asset 
was in use. Assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, 
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for 
indication that an asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any 
such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable 
amount, the assets or cash generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less cost 
to sell and value in use.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when 
incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised when it is probable that 
respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined 
by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included 
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less any impairment in value. All expenditures connected with 
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period including advances to 
suppliers and contractors are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific 
assets as and when these assets are available for use.
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Intangibles
 
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable 
to the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. 

Costs incurred on the acquisition of intangibles are capitalised and are amortised on straight line basis 
over their estimated useful life. Amortisation is charged in the month in which the asset is available for 
use at the rates stated in note 5.1 to these financial statements. 

Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date for events 
or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of net realisable value and cost. Cost is 
determined using first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis except for those in transit which are stated at invoice 
price plus other charges paid thereon up to the balance sheet date. Provision is made annually in the 
financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if required.

Trade debts

Trade debts originated by the Company are recognised and carried at original invoice amounts less 
provision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts is based on the management's assessment 
of customers' outstanding balances and creditworthiness. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

Loans, advances and other receivables

After initial measurement these are carried at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment. 

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the loans, advances and other receivables 
are derecognised or impaired.

Investments 

The investments of the Company, upon initial recognition, are classified as investment at fair value 
through profit or loss, held to maturity investment or available for sale investment, as appropriate. The 
Company determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where 
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.
 
When investments are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.
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Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term 
fluctuations in price or dealer's margin are classified as held for trading. After initial recognition, 
these are stated at fair values with any resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the profit 
and loss account. Transaction costs are charged to profit and loss account when incurred.

Held-to-maturity investments

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where management has both 
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and are stated at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss 
account when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation 
process.

Available-for-sale investments

Investments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response 
to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available for sale. After initial 
measurement, these are stated at fair values with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income until the investment is disposed or determined to be impaired. At the 
time of disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in other comprehensive income is 
recognised in the profit and loss account.
 
Fair value of investments

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by 
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For 
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and 
balances with banks, pay orders in hand, cheques in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other 
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Taxation

Current
 
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in 
accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if 
any.

Deferred
 
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences 
arising at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

3.7.

3.8.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future 
taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, 
and have not been designated 'as at fair value through profit or loss'. After initial recognition, interest 
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate method. 

Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the amortisation process.

Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services rendered whether or not billed to the 
Company.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provision are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies, if any. The following 
recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

Revenues from port operations are recognised when service is rendered;
Profit on deposits / saving accounts are recognised on time proportion basis; and
Gain on redemption of investments is recognised at the time of redemption. 
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3.13. Staff retirement benefits 

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all eligible employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33 percent of 
the basic salary. 

Contributions from the Company are charged to profit and loss account for the year. 

Long-term employee benefits

The Company provides a facility to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leave under an 
unfunded scheme.

Accruals are made to cover the obligation under the scheme on accrual basis and are charged to profit 
and loss account. Accrual for compensated absences for employees is calculated on the basis of one 
month's gross salary. The amount of liability recognised in the balance sheet is calculated by the 
Company using the above basis as the difference in liability is not expected to be material using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised in case of assets, when the 
contractual rights under the instrument are realised, expired or surrendered and in case of liability, 
when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet, if the 
Company has the enforceable legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense arising from 
such assets and liabilities are also offset accordingly.

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupee (functional currency) using the 
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are re-translated into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translations at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are taken to profit and loss account.

Dividend 

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved.
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3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.
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3.19.1. Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if 
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect of the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying value of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets 
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indications exist, then the recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account, for the 
amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. 
Value in use is determined through discounting of estimated future cash flows using a 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which they are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).  

3.19.2.

3.19. Impairment

3.20. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency.

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

2,842,247
78,797

2,921,044

3,161,837 
100,279 

3,262,116

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

4.1
4.2

 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets  
Capital work-in-progress 

4.
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 Operating fixed assets:4.1.

 Transfers from capital work-in-progress
 Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 37.49 million

*
**

Transfers from capital work-in-progress
 Reclassifications made during the year
 Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 49.825 million

*
**

***

Leasehold  
  improvements

Container / terminal 
handling / workshop
  equipment***

Port power generation

Vehicles

Computers and other
   equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Total

----------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ---------------------------------------------------------------

 December 31, 2016

COST  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION    

 As at
January 01, 

201 6

Additions / 
*transfers from 
capital work-in-

progress/
**reclassifications  

Disposals
(Note 4.1.1) 

As at
December 31,

2016

As at
January 01, 

2016

Charge
for the 
year
(note 
4.1.2) 

Disposals 
(note 
4.1.1) 

As at
December 31,

2016

  Written
down value

as at
December 31, 

2016

Depreciation
rate

per annum
%

2,050,539

5,094,815

517,447

36,877

252,509

62,415

8,014,602

8,014,602

1,204,599

2,676,474

249,544

18,385

171,439

39,754 

4,360,195

4,360,195

106,220

366,444

59,161

3,714

18,226

5,583

559,348

559,348

1,310,819

3,010,852

308,705

22,099

155,015

45,275

4,852,765

4,852,765

739,720

2,083,963

208,742

14,778

97,494

17,140

3,161,837

3,161,837

2,043,516

7,991,270

5,101,780

514,763

30,172

236,469

64,570

7,991,270

5-20

5-20

5-10

20

10-33.33

10

-

       (40,664)

-

-

(37,525)

(62)

(78,251)

(78,251)

1,320
*9,419

**(3,716)

101,583

15,285
*4,995

**13,419

**2,684

**(2,093)

26,002
*75,581

3,604
**3,101

5,793
*61,167

**(13,395)

-

   (32,066)

-

-

(34,650)

(62)

(66,778)

(66,778)
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5-20

----------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ---------------------------------------------------------------

 December 31, 2017    

COST  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION    

 As at
January 01, 

201 7

Additions / 
*transfers from 
capital work-in-

progress 

Disposals
(Note 
4.1.1) 

As at
December 31,

2017

As at
January 01, 

2017 

Charge
for the 
year
(note 
4.1.2) 

Disposals 
(note 
4.1.1) 

As at
December 31,

2017

  Written
down value

as at
December 31, 

2017 

Depreciation
rate

per annum 
%

5-10

20

10-33.33

10-33.33

2,050,539

517,447

36,877

252,509

62,415

8,014,602

8,014,602

5,094,815 5-20

 7,265            
*18,939

*225,873

291,137

*153,073
12,961

*35,861

*1,128

    15,751       
*16,872

2,615

   65,264

26,672

-

(47,595)

-

     (18,121)

(1,799)

(930)

       (47,595)

(26,745)

2,076,743

8,258,144

8,258,144

566,269

19,884

283,333

64,100

5,247,815

1,310,819

4,852,765

4,852,765

308,705

22,099

155,015

45,275

3,010,852

132,012

597,844

597,844

44,587

4,663

38,547

4,727

373,308

-

(34,712)

(34,712)

-

      (13,299)

(1,098)

(612)

(19,703)

1,442,831

5,415,897

5,415,897

353,292

13,463

192,464

49,390

3,364,457

633,912

1,883,358

212,977

6,421

90,869

14,710

2,842,247

2,842,247
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Leasehold  
  improvements

Container / terminal 
handling / workshop
  equipment**

Port power generation

Vehicles

Computers and other
   equipment

Furniture and fixtures
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Total



 

Particulars
 

Cost
 

Accumulated 
depreciation  

Written 
down value  

Sale 
proceeds  

Particulars of  
buyer  

Mode of  
Disposal  

   -----------------------(Rs. in thousands) -----------------    
        
Container / terminal handling / 
workshop equipment   

      
Prime m overs  5,647  3,555  2,092  4,100  Mr. Yar Muhammad  Tender  
Prime movers  10,676  7,686  2,990  5,850  Ship Services  Tender  
Reach s tacker  3,224  2,801  423  3,000  Ship Services  Tender  
Prime m over   3,754  2,217  1,537  3,704  EFU General Insurance  

Limited  Insurance Claim  
  23,301  16,259  7,042       16,654    
        
Computers and  
other equipment       

 
 

Biometric machines   1,471  770  701  331  Limton Innovative  Exchange  
 1,471  770  701  331    

Furniture and fixtures        
Water tanks   453  155  298  2  Mr. Muhammad Hashim  Tender  
  453  155  298  2    
Vehicles         
Toyota land cruiser  

 
10,546  7,646  2,900  3,599  Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan 

(Ex -CEO)  
As per 
Company policy  

Toyota fortuner   4,946  3,024  1,922  2,200  Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan 
(CEO)  

As per 
Company policy  

  15,492  10,670  4,822  5,799  
 

 
Items having written down value 
of less than Rs 50 thousand  6,878  6,858  20  2,784  Various  Various  

2017   47,595  34,712  12,883  25,570    

        

2016  78,251  66,778  11,473  13,480    

 Disposals of operating fixed assets:4.1.1.

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

18
19

4.2.2

4.2.

Depreciation charge for the year has been
   allocated as under:    
      
    Cost of services 
    Administrative expenses 

4.1.2.

Capital work-in-progress:

Movement: 4.2.1.

538,060
59,784

597,844

503,262 
56,086 

559,348 

100,279
204,391

(225,873)
78,797

68,901 
106,959 
(75,581) 

    100,279 

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Transferred to operating fixed assets
Closing balance
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December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

5.  INTANGIBLES

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets under development 

5.1 43,270
-

43,270

41,903 
   15,032 

56,935 

Category wise breakup:

Leasehold improvements
Container / terminal handling / 
  workshop equipments
Computers and other equipments
Furniture and fixtures

4.2.2.

11,533

54,011
13,089

164
78,797

12,604 

70,803 
16,872 

-
100,279 

 Intangible assets:5.1.

 

 
 

  

 
December 31, 2017

 
 

COST
 

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
  

   

 

 

  
 

Computer software           

Project development 
cost    

 
 

Total

 

 

 

      

 

Transfers from Intangible assets under development*

 

 
 

December 31, 2016 
COST  ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION  

 

Computer software           

Project development 
cost    

 
 Total

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
------------------------------------------(Rs. in thousands) ----------------------------------------

 
Amortisation

 rate per 
annum

%

 
20-33.33 

 20

 
 

Amortisation 
rate per 
annum %

 

20-33.33 

 
20
 

 
As at 

January 01, 
2016 

 
 As at 

January 01, 
2017  

 

 159,662

 

 37,889

 
 
197,551

 

 123,749
 

 
37,889
 
 161,638

Additions/ 
*Transfer

 703

 *15,032

  
 -

 
 
15,735

Additions

 35,913
 
  
 

-
 

 35,913

As at 
December 
31, 2017

  
  175,397

  
 
  37,889

  
  

213,286

As at 
December 
31, 2016  

  
  159,662

  
 

  
37,889

  
  197,551

As at 
January 01, 

2017

 117,759

 
 
 37,889

 
 

155,648

As at 
January 01, 

2016

 112,747
 
 
 

37,889
 
 150,636

Charge/ 
for the 
year 

(note 5.2) 

 14,368

 
 

 -

 
 

14,368

Charge/ 
for the 
year 

(note 5.2) 

 5,012
 
 

 
-

 
 5,012

As at 
December 31, 

2017

  132,127

  
  

  37,889

  
  

170,016

As at 
December 31, 

2016

  117,759
  
  

  
37,889

  
  155,648

 Written down 
value as at 

December 31, 
2017

 
 43,270

 
  

 -

 
 

43,270

Written down 
value as at 

December 31, 
2016

 
 41,903

 
  

 
-
 

 41,903
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5.2 Amortisation charge for the year has been
  allocated as under:
      
Cost of services 
 Administrative expenses 

12,931
1,437

14,368

4,511 
 501 

5,012 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

18
19

 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS - net 6.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Fuel and lubricants

Provision for obsolescence

515,039
23,465

538,504
(29,246)
509,258

348,377 
18,209 

366,586 
(29,246) 

337,340 

TRADE DEBTS - net 7.

 Unsecured     
 Considered good 
 Considered doubtful    

 Provision for doubtful debts    

7.1, 7.2 & 7.3 335,914
1,475

337,389
(1,475)

335,914

302,068 
1,475 

303,543 
(1,475) 

302,068 

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

 The aging of unimpaired trade debts as at December 31 is as follows: 7.1

7.2

7.3

Related parties represent Rs 0.89 million (2016: Rs 0.98 million) due from Marine Services (Private) 
Limited, Rs 0.64 million (2016: Rs 0.89 million) due from Premier Mercantile Services (Private) 
Limited, and Rs 0.71 million (2016: Rs 2.24 million) due from Portlink International Services.

These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 30 days.

Related parties 
Other than related 
    parties 
            2017 
 
Related parties 
Other than related 
    parties 
            2016 

3,485 

251,204 
254,689 

4,111 

297,957 
302,068 

377 

40,922 
41,299 

249 

3,113 
3,362 

-   

2,718 
2,718 

Total

Neither 
past due 

nor 
impaired

Within 90 
days

91 to 180 
days

Over 180 
days

---------------------------- (Rs. in thousands ) ----------------------------

Past due but not impaired

2,243

333,671
335,914

1,655

291,829 
293,484

449

33,645
34,094

34

5,662
5,696

      105

2,535
2,640
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Deposits
Prepayments

Other Receivables – considered good
Sales tax receivable 
Insurance claim receivable
Accrued interest
Receivable from tax authorities
Others

8.  ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good 
Suppliers and contractors 
Employees  

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14,652
2,579

17,231

40,912 
2,605 

43,517 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

16.1.3

4,892 
45,135 

 

11,722 
11,489 

69 
 100,000 

855 
124,135 
174,162 

5,254
49,604

7,448
11,489

255
100,000

5,858
125,050
179,908

9.

10.1. Represents investment in COIs of Saudi Pak Leasing Company (the investee Company). The investee 
Company made default in repayment against COIs in August 2009 due to serious financial and 
liquidity crunch reportedly being faced by it. Due to uncertainties involved, the Company has carried 
impairment provision in these financial statements, as a matter of prudence.

Note

With banks in: 
    current accounts 
    saving accounts  
 
Cash and pay orders in hand 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES11.

11.1

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

96,646 
363,256 
459,902 

2,803 
462,705 

11.1. These carry profit at rates ranging from 3.75 to 6.3 percent (2016: 3.95 to 7 percent) per annum.

 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS - net            

 Held to Maturity Investments      
 Certificate of investments (COIs) 
 Provision for impairment    

43,000 
(43,000) 

- 

10.1

10.

43,000 
(43,000) 

- 

54,175
105,234
159,409

3,445
162,854

Annual Report 201744

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017



Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

12.  SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised capital 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

----- (Number of shares) ----- 

182,000,000 

18,000,000 
200,000,000 

182,000,000 

18,000,000 
200,000,000 

Ordinary shares of Rs 10/- 
   Each 
Preference shares of Rs 10/-
   Each 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

----- (Number of shares) ----- 

63,761,200 
33,352,352 

12,039,600 
109,153,152 

 
63,761,200 
33,352,352 

12,039,600 
109,153,152 

Ordinary shares of 
  Rs 10/- each  
issued for cash                
issued as bonus shares 
issued for consideration 
    other than cash                 

Note

12.1.

1,820,000 

180,000 
2,000,000 

1,820,000 

180,000 
2,000,000 

637,612 
333,524 

120,396 
1,091,532 

637,612 
333,524 

120,396 
1,091,532 

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

568,853
  (125,024)

443,829

13. DEFERRED TAXATION – net 

      Credit / (debit) balances arising in respect of
      timing differences relating to:

      Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation
      Provisions

12.1. Represent shares issued in consideration for mobile harbour cranes, port equipment and a vehicle.

As of the balance sheet date, following are the
    major shareholders (directly and indirectly) 
    of the Company:

      ICTSI - the Parent Company 
    64.54 percent (2016: 64.54 percent)    
       
      Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited
    21.25 percent (2016: 24.7 percent)    

12.2.

70,442,082 
 

26,961,267 

455,584
(123,457)
332,127

70,442,082 
 

23,194,329

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------
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15.1. Includes Rs 201 million (2016: Rs 181.24 million) payable to related parties. 

14.

15.

15.1 
15.1 

15.1

15.1

Note

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

42,972 
10,476 
53,448 
(2,121) 
51,327 

465,387
161,779
114,364
226,069

52,351

128,371
329,541

83,443
4,255

545,610
1,565,560

Opening balance
Accrual made during the year

Payments made during the year
Closing balance

 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 Trade creditors 
Technical services fee payable 
Staff related liabilities 
Payable to port authorities 
Accrued liabilities

 Other liabilities:
 Advances from customers
 Workers' Welfare Fund 
 Sales tax payable 
 Others

LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

51,327
10,089
61,416
(7,958)
53,458

355,057
156,651
102,112
142,909
140,704

82,958
329,541
71,512
5,900

489,911
1,387,344
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 Contingencies16.1.

 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS16.

16.1.1 In 2007, the Trustees of the Port of Karachi (KPT) filed a civil suit against the Company in the 
Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) claiming a sum of Rs 304.5 million alongwith the 
interest, as default payment of wharfage and penalty thereon, for the alleged mis-declaration 
of the category of goods on the import of Ship to Shore Cranes and Rubber Tyre Gantry 
Cranes in 2004. 

During the year, HCS passed the judgement and decree in favour of the Company and 
ordered that KPT is not entitled to the amount of wharfage charges claimed by it. In June 
2017, KPT filed an appeal against the aforesaid HCS judgment before the Divisional Bench of 
HCS. 

Upon advice of the Company's legal advisor, management is confident that there is no merit in 
this claim and accordingly no provision in respect of above has been made in the financial 
statements.
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In 2007, the Company has filed an interpleader civil suit before HCS against the Deputy 
District Officer, Excise and Taxation (DDO) and the Trustees of KPT in respect of demand 
raised by the DDO on the Company to pay property tax out of the Handling, Marshalling and 
Storage (HMS) Charges payable to KPT amounting to Rs 34.6 million for the period from 2003 
to 2007. In compliance with the Order of HCS, the Company deposited the amount with Nazir 
of HCS, out of amount withheld by the company from HMS charges billed by KPT.

In 2014, another demand was made by the DDO amounting to Rs 96.1 million for the period 
2008 to 2014. On an application filed by the Company for directions, HCS ordered for deposit 
of the aforementioned amount out of HMS charges billed by KPT. The Company complied 
with the order of HCS. In 2015, HCS issued further orders directing the Company to deposit 
the remaining HMS charges due and payable with Nazir of HCS in quarterly installments. 
Accordingly, the Company complied with the order of HCS. The amount deposited with Nazir 
of HCS is netted off with the HMS payable to KPT.

The decision of the suit is still pending, and the Company's legal advisor believes that there 
may be no adverse implication for depositing the payments with Nazir of HCS due to KPT in 
view of complying with the HCS's order. Accordingly, no provision has been made in this 
respect in the financial statements.

While completing the audit proceedings for the tax year 2013, the Deputy Commissioner 
Inland Revenue (DCIR) modified the deemed assessment of the Company by passing an 
order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain 
disallowances / additions in the taxable income and raised an income tax demand of Rs 130.4 
million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue – Appeals 
(CIR-A) who partly decided the appeal in favour of the Company. Consequently, the Company 
made the payment of Rs 100 million and filed a second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue (ATIR), in respect of issues confirmed by the CIR (A), which is now pending for 
adjudication. The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the 
appeal will be decided in favour of the Company and accordingly, no provision in respect of 
excess demand raised by the DCIR has been made in the financial statements.

During, the year, the Assistant Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board (AC-SRB) under Sindh 
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 raised a demand of Rs 514.4 million along with penalty and 
default surcharge, for tax periods January 2013 to December 2014 on exempt services 
provided by the Company. The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Appeals – SRB 
which is pending for hearing. The Company has also filed a petition before the HCS in respect 
of the subject order passed by AC-SRB seeking protection from any adverse action. HCS has 
granted an interim order restraining SRB from taking any adverse action relating to recovery of 
above demand.

The tax and legal advisors of the Company are of the view that the Company has a strong 
defense and appeal will be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has 
not made any provision in respect of the above demand in the financial statements.

16.1.3.

16.1.2.

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

16.1.4.
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16.2.1.

16.2.2.

16.2.3.

Commitments for capital expenditure    

Outstanding letters of guarantees    

Outstanding letters of credit     

Commitments 16.2.

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

8,810 
 

109,354 

-

5,883
 

109,354 

784

16.2.4.  Handling, Marshalling and Storage charges 
payable to The Karachi Port Trust 
 

   Not later than one year 
   Later than one year but not later than 
      five years 
   Later than five years 

17.  REVENUE - net   

Gross revenue  
Sales tax 

10,428,272 
(1,132,798) 
9,295,474 

166,746

738,816

1,316,850 
411,288

172,013

770,324
207,768

1,150,105

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

10,413,791
(1,122,351)
9,291,440
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16.1.5 During the year, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) modified the deemed 
assessment of the Company for the tax year 2016 by passing an order under section 122(5A) 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain additions / disallowances to the taxable 
income and tax credits claimed by the Company and raised an income tax demand of Rs 
222.2 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue – 
Appeals (CIR-A) who partly decided the appeal in favour of the Company and remanded back 
the case to ACIR for fresh proceedings on certain issues. Consequently, the Company filed a 
second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of the issues 
confirmed by the CIR-A which is now pending for adjudication. The tax advisor of the 
Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in the favour of 
the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of excess demand raised by the ACIR has 
been made in the financial statements.
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4.1.2 & 5.2

16.1.2 
 
 

18.1 

Salaries, wages and other benefits  
Provident fund contribution 
Staff training 
Terminal handling and services 
Royalty  
Handling, Marshalling and Storage charges 
Fuel and power 
Stores, spares and other maintenance charges 
Technical services fee 
Rent, rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Software maintenance charges 
Office maintenance 
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle running expenses 
Communication, printing and stationery 
Utilities 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Others 

 COST OF SERVICES18.

485,280 
14,731 

582 
703,078 
866,410 
163,312 
528,770 
280,797 
714,827 
208,481 
94,593 
23,471 
40,491 
1,822 
1,718 
3,260 

507,773 
28,601 

4,667,997 

Represents charges for technical services provided by ICTSI, Mauritius to the Company which 
includes continuous improvement of the operations management, training of key personnel and risk 
management services.

18.1.

        549,546           
15,472 

946         
679,854         
803,842         
166,390         
579,422         
271,823         
689,415         
245,065         
102,785             

7,857           
40,882             
2,979             
2,050             
2,701         

550,991           
33,451 

4,745,471

Salaries, wages and other benefits  
Provident fund contribution 
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle 
    running expenses 
Legal and professional charges 
Auditors' remuneration 
Security expenses 
Insurance  
Office maintenance 
Advertising and public relations 
Communication, printing and stationery 
Utilities 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Fees and subscription 
Donations 
Others 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES19.

4.1.2 & 5.2 

19.2

19.1

225,560 
7,329 

15,750 
9,054 
8,393 

12,143 
9,918 

23,720 
4,736 

12,286 
4,455 

56,587 
6,351 
4,249 

22,242 
422,773

197,260
7,424

16,712
12,426
7,683

14,714
11,628
22,484
6,732

17,113
5,158

61,221
3,375
4,049

39,613
427,592

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------
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Auditors' remuneration:19.1.

Fee for statutory audit
Tax advisory services
Limited scope reviews, group reporting package, 
  and various certifications
Out of pocket expenses   

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

1,836
4,536

1,731
290

8,393

Includes Rs 3 million (2016: Rs 3 million) paid to Rabia Azeem Trust in which Mr. Sharique Azim 
Siddiqui (Director) and Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui (Director) are Trustees. No other directors or their 
spouses have any interest in any donee's fund to which donation was made. 

19.2.

1,950
2,924

2,210
599

7,683

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

20.  OTHER EXPENSES 

Workers welfare fund 
Exchange loss - net 

91,227 
835 

92,062 

-
8,162
8,162

23.  TAXATION

Current  
Deferred 
Prior     23.1

23.2

1,413,460 
(148,058) 
123,147 

1,388,549 

22. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets 
Markup on saving accounts 

Income from non-financial assets 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 
Others 

 FINANCE COST

Markup on long-term financing 
Bank charges 

46,683 
259 

46,942 

21.

7,987
556

8,543

61,971

2,007
7,494
9,501

71,472

45,864

12,687 
8,599

21,286
67,150

1,346,894
(111,702)
135,752

1,370,944
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This includes super tax of Rs 136.8 million (2016: Rs 123.4 million) imposed under section 4B of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act, 2017.

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was revised by the Finance Act, 2017 which 
substituted the concept of tax on undistributed reserves with a new concept of tax on undistributed 
profits. According to the revision, tax at the rate of 7.5 percent shall be payable on the accounting 
profits before tax of every public company other than a scheduled bank and modaraba if at least 40% 
of its after tax profits are not distributed as dividend, either as cash or as bonus shares, within six 
months of the end of the tax year.

As explained in note 33, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 23, 2018 have 
recommended sufficient cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017 for the approval of 
shareholders in forth coming Annual General Meeting. This is in addition to the interim dividend of    
Rs.17.55 per ordinary share declared during the year which together meets the above stated 
requirement. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognised in the 
financial statements.

23.1.

23.2.

Profit before taxation   
    
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 30 percent 
    (2016: 31 percent) 
Net effect of income tax provision relating to prior years 
Effect of change in rate of deferred tax 
Others 

Average effective tax rate 

Relationship between tax expense and 
      accounting profit:

23.3.

Profit after taxation                                  

Weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the year                                                   

Earnings per share                                                   

 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE - basic and diluted24.

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

4,137,172 
 

1,282,523 
123,147 
(18,496) 

1,375 
1,388,549 

------- (Percent) ------ 

------- (Rs. in thousands) ------ 

------- (No of shares) ------ 

------- (Rupees) ------ 

              25.18 

109,153,132

2,748,623 

               33.56 

4,168,822

1,250,647    
135,752
(14,317)
(1,138)

1,370,944

32.88

2,797,878

109,153,132

25.63
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25.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to 
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to 
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties 
and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business 
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. 
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to 
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on long-term deposits, trade debts, advances, deposits, 
other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimise the credit risk exposure by 
dealing only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

25.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign 
currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. No changes made to the objectives and policies 
during the year ended December 31, 2017. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for 
managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Unsecured:
Long-term deposits
Trade debts - net
Advances 
Deposits and other receivables
Bank balances

Carrying Values

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as 
shown below:

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

1,547
302,068
43,517
17,305

459,902
824,339

8,729
335,914
17,231
30,304

159,409
551,587
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---------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ----------------------

Cash with Banks 

            A1
            A1+

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due. The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and 
bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines. The table below summarises the maturity 
profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

302,068

-
302,068

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

Trade debts 

            Customers with no defaults in the past one year
            Customers with some defaults in past one year 
               which have been fully recovered

335,914

-
335,914

                 9,209
150,200
159,409

 

51,617
408,285
459,902

25.2.

25.1.1.

25.1.2.

Foreign Currency Risk    

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabilities will fluctuate due 
to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to 
transactions in foreign currency. 

25.3.

December 31, 2017
Long-term financing – secured
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up on long-term 
  financing

December 31, 2016
Long-term financing – secured
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up on long-term 
  financing

-
631,234

-
631,234

-
355,057

-
355,057

-
-

-
-

-
986,291

-
986,291

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
764,728

-
764,728

-
161,779

-
161,779

298,755
-

1,816
300,571

   298,755   
926,507

1,816
1,227,078

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Total
3 to 12 
months

1 to 5 
Years

Less than 
3 months

On 
demand

> 5 
years

Carrying Values
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25.4. Interest rate risk     
       
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of change in 
market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term financing obligations with floating 
interest rates. However, as of the balance sheet date the Company does not have any long-term 
financing. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis:     

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with 
all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax:

The foreign currency exposure is adequately covered as the majority of the Company's billing is 
determined in dollars which is converted into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the 
transaction date. 

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, 
with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax:

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------------- (Rupees) -------------
The following significant exchange rate has been applied 
   at the reporting dates:

Pakistani Rupee to US Dollars              104.71110.70

Change in 
Exchange rates

Effect on profit 
before tax

(Rs. in thousands)

 11,425    
        

7,896 

 
± 5%

± 5%

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Change in 
basis point 

Effect on profit 
before tax

(Rs. in thousands)

1,594
        

1,494

 
± 100

± 100

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

25.5. Equity price risk
    
Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instruments. The 
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in 
equity shares as at the balance sheet date.
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Capital risk management
    
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, 
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its 
existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of 
capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust 
the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net 
debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity as 
shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. The Company paid the final installment of the long term 
loan during the year and hence the gearing ratio of the Company as at December 31, 2017 is Nil 
(December 31, 2016: 40.96%).

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets consist of 
bank balances, advances, trade deposits, other receivables and short-term investments. Financial 
liabilities consist of trade and other payables. The fair values of financial instruments are not materially 
different from their carrying values. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

 Level 1:  Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active   
   markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: Fair  value   measurements   using   inputs   other   than  quoted prices 
   included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
   either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 Level 3: Fair  value  measurements  using  inputs  for the asset or liability that are 
   not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As of the balance sheet date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair 
value that required categorisation in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount, charged in the financial statements for the year, is as follows:

25.6.

26.

55

27.

27.1.



Annual Report 2017

The Chief Executive and certain Executives of the Company were also provided with the free use of 
Company maintained cars, club memberships and medical benefits in accordance with their terms 
of service.

During the year, no remuneration / fee paid to the Directors / Chairman (Non-Executive) by the 
Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS    

The related parties include the Parent Company, associated companies, entities having directors in 
common with the Company, directors and other key management personnel. Following are the 
details of related party transactions other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements. 

27.2.

27.3.

28.

 
 

Chief 
Executive 

Directors / 
Chairman 

(Non- 
Executive) 
(note 27.3) 

 
Executives  

Chief 
Executive 

Directors / 
Chairman 

(Non- 
Executive) 

 
Executives 

December 31, 2017   December 31, 2016 

 --------------------------------(Rs. in thousands) -------------------------------- 
       

21,471 - 160,613 
 

20,628 - 148,557 

1,267 - 7,523 

 

1,160 - 6,750 
7,157 - 44,461 6,657 - 46,378 

29,895 - 212,597 28,445 - 201,685 

    1 7 71 

 
Managerial  
  remuneration  
Company’s  
  contribution to  
  provident fund  
Bonus  
 
 Number 1 7  84  

Associated companies/other related parties
689,415  

579,018  

41,924  

3,260  

-

3,000  

2,260,508

18.1

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

Note

714,827

541,816

54,484

8,073

1,080

3,000

2,941,569

Technical services fee

Terminal handling services and rent

 Revenue from container handling

Traveling expenses

Software maintenance charges

Donations

Dividends
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December 31, 
2017

(Un-audited)

December 31, 
2016 

(Un-audited)
-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

PROVIDENT FUND30.

Size of the fund – net assets

Cost of investments made

Fair value of investments made

Percentage of investments made

-------- (Percent) -------

341,234

330,747

330,231

96.78

351,515

330,503

338,730

96.36

Amounts due from and due to related parties, amount relating to remuneration of the Chief 
Executive, Director / Chairman and Executives are disclosed in the relevant notes to these financial 
statements.

28.1.

 

4,137,172

564,360
10,476
46,942
   835

(61,971)
(2,007)

558,635

4,695,807

22,604
107,470

51,228
181,302

313,293

5,190,402

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

    Profit before taxation
    Adjustments for non-cash items:
         Depreciation and amortisation
         Accrual for long-term employee benefits
         Finance cost
         Exchange loss – net
         Markup on saving accounts
         Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Operating profit before working capital                 
    changes  

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
         Stores, spare parts and loose tools – net
         Trade debts – net
         Advances, deposits, prepayments and other 
            receivables

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities
         Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Note

4.1.2 & 5.2
14
21
20
22
22

 
4,168,822

612,212
10,089
8,543
8,162

(45,864)
(12,687)
580,455

4,749,277

(171,918)
(33,846)

20,726
(185,038)

           
(186,378)

4,377,861

29.

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------
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33.

34.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE    

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on February 23, 2018 by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in their board meeting, held on February 23, 2018 have recommended a final 
cash dividend of Rs. 6.43 per ordinary share amounting to Rs. 701.854 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. The adjustment for this dividend will be incorporated in the subsequent financial 
statements of the Company.

EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF IFRIC – 12 “SERVICE CONCESSION 
ARRANGEMENTS”

As explained in note 2.1, the required disclosure is as follows:

Under IFRIC-12, the consideration required to be made by operator (the Company) for the right to use 
the asset is to be accounted for as an intangible asset under IAS – 38 “Intangible Assets”. If the 
Company had to follow IFRIC-12, the effect on the financial statements would be as follows:

32.

 

Investment
as size 

of the fund 
(Percent) 

Investments
(Rs. in 

thousands)

December 31, 2017
(Un-audited)

952

958

The financial year end of the provident fund of the Company is June 30 each year. The above 
information is based on unaudited financial statements of the provident fund.

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the 
section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

31.

894

913

100,139

230,092

30.32

69.68

Mutual funds

Bank Balances

             82,612

256,118

23.50

72.86

December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Number) -------
NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED

Persons employed as of 

Average persons employed during the year 

 
 

 
 

  

Investment
as size 

of the fund 
(Percent)

December 31, 2016
(Un-audited)

Investments
(Rs. in 

thousands)

Break-up of investments of provident fund

Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund is as 
follows:

30.1.
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December 31, 
2017

December 31, 
2016 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
  (including CWIP) to intangible assets (Port 
  Concession Rights) – written down value 1,568,306 1,699,896

Reclassification from spares to intangible assets 27,919 19,092

Recognition of intangible assets (Port Concession
  Rights) on account of handling and marshalling
  charges (HMS) 494,578 559,088

Recognition of present value of concession liability 
  on account of intangibles (HMS) 891,794 1,005,852

Interest expense for the year on account of
  intangibles (HMS) 55,322 60,785

Amortisation expense for the year on account of   
  intangibles (HMS) 86,014 86,014

Amortisation expense for the year on account of
 concession assets (PPE and spares) 285,498 158,565

Increase in profit before tax for the year on account 
 of reversal of HMS 169,380 160,117

59

GENERAL

Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

The handling capacity of the Company is indeterminable because it depends on certain variables 
such as dwell time of containers, availability of external yards and type of containers. The TEUs 
handled by the Company were according to the market demand.

35.1.

35.2.

35.

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director



No. of  Shareholders Total Shares
From To

 Share holdings Held  

907
402
707
165
19
5
4
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1 
101 
501 

1001 
5001 

10001 
15001 
25001 
40001 
45001 
55001
60001 
90001 

100001
275001 
390001 

2235001 
11615001 
17155001 
23190001 
52515001 

100 
500 

1000 
5000 

10000 
15000 
20000 
30000 
45000 
50000 
60000
65000 
95000

105000 
280000 
395000 

2240000 
11620000 
17160000 
23195000 
52520000 

                            21,162  
                            93,365  
                         539,602  
                         365,025  
                         144,882  
                            60,540  
                            66,956  
                            59,520  

 43,200  
49,940
60,000                    

                            63,363  
                            94,000  
                         102,300

276,665
394,600

2,235,083
11,616,938
17,155,639
23,194,329
52,516,043

                           2,224                  109,153,152  

Categories of  Shareholders Number of  
 Shareholders  

 Total Shares 
held  

Percentage 

Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor children 
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 
NIT and ICP
Banks, DFI's, NBFC's 
Insurance Companies 
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 
General Public 
a.  Local  
b.  Foreign 
Foreign Investors 
Joint Stock Companies 
Trust

Shareholders Holding 10% or more shares

3
3
-
1
1
4

2,178
5
5

23
1

5,100 
92,866,011

- 
720 
854 

5,664 
 

2,008,128
6,420 

13,852,321
407,926

8 

0.00% 
85.08% 

- 
0.00%
0.00%
0.01% 

 
1.84% 
0.01% 

12.69% 
0.37% 
0.00%

                     2,224         109,153,152    100.00% 
 

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2017
Corporate Universal Identification Number: 0043992

                     4       104,482,949 95.72% 
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Categories of  Shareholders Number of  
 Shareholders  

 Total Shares 
held  

Percentage 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 
ICTSI Mauritius Limited 
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited
Aeolina Investments Ltd. 

Mutual Funds 
CDC  Trustee and Index Tracker Fund 
National Capital Fund Limited 

Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor children 
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui 
Mr. Jose Manual M. De Jesus 
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui 

Executives 

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 

Banks, DFIs, NBFCs, Insurance Companies, Takaful
Modarabas and Pension Funds 

Joint Stock Companies

Foreign Investors 

General Public 

Trust

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest

ICTSI Mauritius Limited 
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited
Aeolina Investments Ltd. 
EFG Private Bank Limited 

Details of Purchase/Sale of Shares By  Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses  or 
Minor Children during Year Ended December 31, 2017

 
                             1  
                             1  
                             1  

 
 

1 
1 
 
 

                             1  
                             1  
                             1  

                              
4 
 

                        -        
 

4 
 

23 
 

5

2,179

1

         52,516,043  
         23,194,329  
         17,155,639  

 
 

3,600 
110 

 
 

4,500 
100 
500 

 
8,341 

 
                          -     

 
 

3,528 
 

407,926         

13,852,321  
 

2,006,207 

8

85.08% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.01% 

- 

0.00% 

0.37%  

12.69%    

1.84% 

0.00% 

                     2,224        109,153,152 100.00% 
 

                             1  
                             1  
                             1  

1

         52,516,043  
         23,194,329  
         17,155,639  

11,616,938

Name  Date of 
Purchase

No of Shares  
Purchased

Designation 
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N/A N/A N/ANone

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2017
Under Code of Corporate Governance 



Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth (17th) Annual General Meeting of the members of 
Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (“Company”) will be held on Thursday, April 19, 
2018 at 11:30 a.m., at Mövenpick Hotel, Club Road, Karachi, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To confirm the minutes of the 16th Annual General Meeting held on April 24, 2017.

To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on February 24, 2018.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended December 31, 2017 together with the Directors' Report, Chairman's Review Report and 
Auditors' Report thereon.

  To appoint Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending December 31, 2018 and to 
authorise Directors to fix their remuneration. The present auditors EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered 
Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

To consider, declare and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 6.43/- per ordinary share of the 
Company, as recommended by the Board of Directors, in addition to the interim cash dividend of 
Rs. 17.55/- per ordinary share already paid during 2017, thereby making a total cash dividend of 
Rs. 23.98/- per ordinary share for the year ended December 31, 2017.

 To consider, approve and adopt the proposed changes to Articles of Association of the 
Company to bring it in line with the Companies Act, 2017 and, if deemed fit, for this purpose to 
pass the following resolution as a Special resolution as required under Section 38 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act):

“Resolved that the alterations, additions and changes to the Articles of Association of the 
Company as proposed by the Board of Directors during the course of their meeting held on 
February 23, 2018 and circulated to the shareholders alongwith the notice of this meeting be 
and are hereby approved and amended Articles of Association of the Company are hereby 
adopted with effect from the date of this meeting in place of, and to rescission of, the existing set 
of Articles of Association of the Company”.

“Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and / or the Company Secretary or such other 
person(s) as authorised by any of them, be and are hereby jointly or severally authorized and 
empowered to take such other steps, execute such other documents and make necessary 
corporate and other filings as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to 
the above resolutions and all other matters incidental or ancillary thereto”

A statement of material facts as required under Section 134 (3) of the Act in relation to the 
aforesaid special business to be transacted at the said Annual General Meeting is annexed to 
this notice of the meeting.

1.

2.

3.

thNotice of the 17  Annual General Meeting
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

5.

6.



To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the 
Chair.

7.

NOTES:

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:
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CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 13, 2018 to April 19, 2018 
(both days inclusive) during which no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration. Transfers in 
good order, received at the office of Company's Share Registrar, M/S Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited, Share Registrar Department, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi -74400 by the close of business on April 12, 2018 will be treated in time for 
the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement of transferees for payment of final dividend and to attend 
and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the above said meeting is entitled to appoint another 
person as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall 
have such rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the above said meeting as are 
available to the Member.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated 
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Duly completed, signed and stamped instrument of proxy (as enclosed) and the other authority under 
which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, in order to be valid, must be lodged with the 
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company (Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, 
Karachi) not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. The proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. 

 FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Central 
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by 
showing his / her valid original Computerised National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at 
the time of attending the meeting.

A.

By the order of the Board

Adil Siddique

Company Secretary

Karachi: March 29, 2018
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In case of a corporate entity/trust, the Board of Directors'/Trustees' resolution / power of 
attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

The members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. numbers and 
account numbers in CDS.

 FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Central 
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, shall submit the duly completed and 
stamped proxy form accordingly.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original 
passport at the time of the meeting and copy of CNIC of Member of whom he/she holds Proxy. 
Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners/members and the proxy 
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

In case of a corporate entity/trust, the Board of Directors'/Trustees' resolution / power of 
attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be submitted along with proxy form to the 
Company.

POSTAL BALLOT

Members can also demand a poll and exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e by 
post or through electronic mode subject to the requirements of section 143-145 of the Act and 
applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

B.

C.

As per Circular No. 10 dated May 21, 2014 of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
read with section 134(1)(b) of the Act, members can also avail video conference facility for 
attending the Annual General Meeting in a city other than in which Annual General Meeting is 
being held. In this regard, please fill the following and submit to registered address of the 
Company seven (7) days before holding of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company receives 
demand from members holding in aggregate 10% or more of the total paid up capital residing in 
a city, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days before 
holding of the Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in the 
city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

“I/We, _____________________ of ___________________, being a member of Pakistan 
International Container Terminal Limited, holder of ______________________ ordinary share(s) 
as per register Folio No. ______________________________ hereby opt for video conference 
facility at _______________________________.                                             __________________

                                                                                                               Signature of Member

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days 
before the date of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable 
them to access such facility.

For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Company and / or the Share 
Registrar at the following phone Numbers and email addresses:

VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

·

·

·

·

thNotice of the 17  Annual General Meeting
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PICT Investor Relations Department PICT Shares Registrar   

 
 

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited
Berths # 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port
Karachi.
+92 21 32855701-9 Ext. 2602;2606 
investor-relations@pict.com.pk

Share Registrar Services, Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 
99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi. +92-21 32416774 
info@cdcpak.com

MINUTES OF 16TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND PREVIOUS EXTRAORDINARY 
GENERAL MEETING

Copies of the minutes of the 16th Annual General Meeting held on April 24, 2017 and Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on February 24, 2018 will be available to the Members on submission of written 
request.

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE AND 
SUBMISSION OF COPIES OF VALID CNIC & NATIONAL TAX NUMBER [NTN] CERTIFICATE

 The provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any 
dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank 
account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical 
shares are requested to provide the information on a Dividend mandate form (enclosed) to the 
Company's Share Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of CDC account holders, 
the same information should be provided directly to the CDS participant/ CDC Investor Account 
Services. The Company or its Share Registrar cannot act on any request received directly from 
the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank 
mandates. The form is also available at the Company website i.e. .www.pict.com.pk

 The designated bank account details should be of the titleholder of the shares or Account title in 
Central Depository System.

 The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC and 
Corporate Entities who have not yet submitted their NTN are once again reminded to have these 
details updated with their respective CDS participants, in case of CDC account holders and to 
send the same at the earliest directly to the Company's Share registrar at the address given 
herein above, in case of physical shareholders. Please provide folio numbers with the copy of 
CNIC / NTN.

 In case of non-receipt of valid Bank details given herein above and copy of valid CNIC or NTN, 
the Company would withhold future dividend payments to such shareholders as per the 
provisions of section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 6 of the Companies 
(Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

 The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the 
amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as per law.

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of Cash Dividend, all the 
members whose names are not entered into Active Tax-Payers List (ATL), despite the fact that

·

FILER AND NON-FILER STATUS

·

·

·

·

·

mailto:investor-relations@pict.com.pk
mailto:Info@cdcpak.com
http://www.pict.com.pk
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they are filers are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL available at e-portal 
of Federal Board of Revenue (“FBR”), before the date of commencement of book closure for 
cash dividend. The Company as per the law shall apply 20% rate of withholding tax if the 
shareholder's name with relevant details does not appear on the ATL available on the FBR 
website on first day of the book closure and deposit the same in the Government Treasury as this 
has to be done within the prescribed time.

 Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax 
exemption certificate is made available to the Company's share registrar by April 12, 2018.

 The FBR has clarified that holders of shares held in joint names or joint accounts will be treated 
individually as either filers or non-filers and tax will be deducted according to the proportionate 
holding of each holder. All shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide 
shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held 
by them to our Shares Registrar, in writing as follows:

·

·

Folio/CDC 
Account 

No. 

Total 
Shares 

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder  CNIC No.  Signature  
Name and 

CNIC
No.

 
 

Shareholding
Proportion

(No. of Shares)

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

Name and 
CNIC
No.

Shareholding
Proportion

(No. of Shares)

UNPAID OR UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES

Pursuant to section 244 of the Act and Unclaimed shares, Modaraba Certificates, Dividend, Other 
instruments and Undistributed Assets Regulations, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by 
the Company, which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is due and 
payable shall vest with the Federal Government after compliance of procedures prescribed under the 
Act and Unclaimed shares, Modaraba Certificates, Dividend, Other instruments and Undistributed 
Assets Regulations, 2017. As per section 244(1)(b) of the Act, final Notice to shareholders for 
unclaimed dividend/shares was published in English and Urdu newspapers on January 19, 2018. 
The Company shall after ninety days from January 19, 2018, deposit the unclaimed dividend 
amounts to the credit of the Federal Government and deliver the unclaimed shares to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as per section 244 of the Act and Regulation 5 and 6 of 
Unclaimed shares, Modaraba Certificates, Dividend, Other instruments and Undistributed Assets 
Regulations, 2017.

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/shares are advised to contact our Share Registrar 
to claim their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated May 
31, 2016, has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts to its members 
through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject 
to approval obtained from shareholders in General Meeting. Accordingly, the Company has obtained 

The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on April 12, 
2018; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and 
Joint Holder(s) and deduction of withholding tax will be made accordingly.

thNotice of the 17  Annual General Meeting
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approval from members in the 16th Annual General Meeting held on April 24, 2017. Pursuant to the 
approval of members, as aforesaid, the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended December 31, 2017, have been circulated to the members along with Notice of this 
meeting through CD/DVD/USB.

In terms of SRO No 787(I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual 
balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors report etc. along with the 
notice of Annual General Meeting through email. The Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic 
circulation of annual financial statements and reports thereon. Accordingly, we are pleased to offer 
this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements and Notices of the 
Company through e-mail in future. Annual Accounts along with the notice of Annual General Meeting 
have been circulated by email to those members who have requested for annual balance sheet and 
profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors report etc. along with the notice of Annual 
General Meeting through email.

For the convenience of shareholders, a Standard Request Form has been made available at the 
Company's website i.e. , to opt receiving of future annual reports through email or www.pict.com.pk
in hard copies. Please ensure that your email has sufficient rights and space available to receive such 
email which may be larger than 1 MB file in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the member to timely 
update to the Share Registrar of any change in the registered email address.

The duly filled & signed form can be submitted through post/courier to the Company's Share 
Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of CDC account holders, the same information 
should be provided directly to the CDS participant/ CDC Investor Account Services. The forms are 
also available at the Company website i.e. . Members who do not provide their www.pict.com.pk
email ids or request for a hard copy shall continue to receive their future Annual Financial Statements 
and reports through CD/ DVD/USB at the registered address. 

PLACEMENT OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON WEBSITE

Annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 along 
with reports have been made available on the Company's website - www.pict.com.pk.

SUBMISSION OF ZAKAT EXEMPTION

Members are requested to submit declaration as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980 for Zakat 
exemption and to advise change in address, if any.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS 

Any change of address of Members should be immediately notified to the Company's share registrar 
M/S Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main 
Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi.

CONVERSION OF SHARES IN BOOK-ENTRY FORM

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their shares from 
physical form to book-entry form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can 
contact the Company or Share Registrar for assistance in this regard.

http://www.pict.com.pk
http://www.pict.com.pk
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Shareholders are requested to provide above mentioned information/documents to (i) respective 
Central Depository System (CDS) Participants and (ii) in case of physical securities to the 
Company/Share Registrar

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION OF 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2017 IN RELATION TO AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) was promulgated 
effective from May 30, 2017 which repealed old law i.e. the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the 
Ordinance). The Act through its promulgation introduced many changes. In order to make the 
documents of the Company in line with the reframed and changed law, there was a compelling need 
for Board of directors (the Board) to amend the Articles of Association of the Company. The draft of 
amendments in Articles of Association was presented in the meeting of the Board held on February 
23, 2018 and in the presence of required quorum, the same was approved unanimously. In order to 
comply with the requirements of Section 38 of the Act, the Board has proposed to seek the approval 
of members in the Annual General meeting to be held on April 19, 2018 by way of special resolution 
within the meaning of Section 2(1)(66) of the Act.

In this special business of approval of amendments in Articles of Association, none of the directors is 
having any special interest except and to the extent of occupying the position of director of the 
Company or holding the shares in the Company. 

Full set of Articles of Association can be inspected /reviewed by any member, without any charge 
during business hours of any working day before the meeting from 11:00 am to 1:00 pm, at the 
Registered Office of the Company. For the convenience of members, the draft of proposed set of 
Articles of Association is enclosed with this notice of the meeting.
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GLOSSARY
ICTSI: 

PICT: 

KPT: 

ISO: 

TEU: 

LED:

NIT:

SRO:

CEO: 

CFO: 

CSR: 

CDC: 

DFI: 

NBFC: 

HRM: 

IFRS: 

IFRIC: 

ICAP: 

PICG: 

Board: 

SRB: 

SECP: 

PSX:

International Container Terminal Services Incorporation

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

Karachi Port Trust

International Organisation  for Standardization

Twenty Foot Equivalent Unit

Light Emitting Diode 

National Investment Trust Limited

Statutory Regulatory Orders

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Social Responsibility

Central Depository Company

Development Finance Institution

Non-Banking Financial Company

Human Resource Management

International Financial Reporting Standards

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance

Board of Directors

Sindh Revenue Board

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Pakistan Stock Exchange
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FORM OF PROXY
The Company Secretary

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

Berths # 6-9, East Wharf, Keamari

Karachi Port, Karachi.

I /We,  ________________________________  S/o ,  D/o ,  W/o,  _____________________________________  o f  

__________________________being a member of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) and holder of 

___________________ Shares as per Share Register Folio No. _________ and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. _________ and Sub Account No. 

__________ hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss _________________________________ of _______________________ as my/our proxy to attend, 

th speak and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 17 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on April 19, 2018 at 

Mövenpick Hotel, Club Road, Karachi, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witnessed given under my / our hand(s) ___________ day of ____________ 2018

Witnesses:

1. Name ________________________________________________

Address ________________________________________________

CNIC No. ________________________________________________

Signature ________________________________________________

2. Name ________________________________________________ Shareholder's Folio No._______________

Address ________________________________________________ CDC A/c No:                 _______________

CNIC No. _______________________________________________ NIC No:                         _______________

Signature _______________________________________________ Dated:                           _______________

Signature on
Rs. 5/-

Revenue Stamp

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy who shall have such rights as respects   

    attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member.

2. The proxy in order to be valid must be signed across Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and should be deposited with the Company not later  

    than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. The proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport and bring folio number at the time of 

    attending the meeting.

4. Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

5. CDC shareholders and their Proxies must attach either an attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or 

    Passport with this Proxy Form.

6. In case of proxy by a corporate entity/trust, Board of Directors/Trustees resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature and 

    attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with the proxy form.





PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL CONTAINER TERMINAL LIMITED

Admission Slip

thFor the 17  Annual General Meeting of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited scheduled on 
Thursday, April 19, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at Mövenpick Hotel, Club Road, Karachi. Kindly bring this slip 
duly signed by you for attending the Meeting.

COMPANY 
SECRETARY

Signature(s)

NOTES:

i) The signature of the shareholder must tally with the specimen signature in the Company record.

ii) Shareholders are requested to hand over duly completed admission slips at the counter before  

   entering the meeting   premises.

THIS ADMISSION SLIP IS NON TRANSFERABLE

Folio No.     

Name        

Joint holder(s), if any,

i.                                                                

ii.                                                                

iii.                                                                





REQUEST FORM FOR TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT & NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) THROUGH EMAIL OR IN HARD COPY

The Share Registrar Services (Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited)      
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
99-B, Block 'B', SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400        
Tel: +92-21-111-111-500 , Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcpak.com

Date:  ________________

Subject: Request for transmission of Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through Email or in Hard copy

I/we hereby request to receive Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through email or in hard copy instead of receiving them 
through CD/DVD/USB as mentioned below:

MEMBERSHIP DETAILS

 

Name of the Shareholder(s)

  

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.

  

CNIC No.

      

-

        

-

  

Land Line Phone Number

  

Cell Number

  

Passport No. (incase of foreign shareholder)

  

Valid Email Address 

 

(To be recorded in the Member Register maintained under Section 
119 of the Companies Act, 2017)

 
 

Registered Postal Address 
 

(As per Member Register maintained under Section 119 of the 
Companies Act, 2017)

 
 

 

MODE OF RECEIVING ALL FUTURE ANNUAL REPORTS ALONG WITH NOTICE OF AGM THROUGH 
EMAIL OR IN HARD COPY UNDER SECTION 223 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, INSTEAD OF 

RECEIVING THEM THROUGH CD/DVD/USB 
(Please select any one option)

 
 

 
 

OPTION 1: Through email on the valid email address provided 
above  

 

OPTION 2: Hard copies on my registered postal address   
It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that I/We will intimate the changes in the abovementioned 

information to the Company and / or the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

I/we hereby further authorize the Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the 
Company alongwith email address mentioned.

I/we undertake that by sending the Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail by the Company, the Company 
shall be considered compliant with the relevant requirements of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017. In case a hard 
copy of Audited Financial Statements and/or Notice of AGM of the Company is desired, specific request for the same will be 
made.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

 

Communication address of the Company

 

Communication address of the Share Registrar

  

Postal

 

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 
Berths No. 6-9, East Wharf,

 

Karachi Port, Karachi

 

M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi -74400.

 

  

e-mail 
address

 

investor-relations@pict.com.pk

 

info@cdcpak.com

 · Please attach attested photocopy of the valid CNIC / valid Passport.

· This Request Form is optional and not compulsory.

· The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above information to the Share  

 Registrar at the address as mentioned above.

· The shareholders who are maintaining shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) i.e. in CDC are 

 advised to submit the above information to their Participant / CDC Investor Account Service.

Notes:





FORM (E-DIVIDEND MANDATE)

§ Please provide complete IBAN after checking with your concerned Bank branch along with Account maintenance  
 certificate, to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account. In case of any error or omission in IBAN, the   
 Company will not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment.
§ Please attach attested clear photocopy of valid CNIC/ Passport/NTN.
§ In case of Joint shareholders, all joint shareholders are required to sign this form.
§ The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above information to the concerned Share 
 Registrar.
§ Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) are advised to submit this form 
 directly to relevant Participant / CDC Investor Account Service with a copy to share registrar.
§ All fields of the form have to be compulsorily filled up. In case of nil information for a particular field, ‘N/A’ is to be written. The  
 form is to be filled up by the shareholder himself / herself in Block Capitals with blue colour ball point pen. 

Notes:

The Share Registrar Services (Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited)
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
99-B, Block 'B', SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400        
Tel: +92-21-111-111-500 , Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcpak.com

Subject: Bank account details for payment of Cash Dividend through electronic mode 

Dear Sir      
 
I/We, Mr. / Ms. / Mrs._________________________________________ S/o D/o W/o, _________________________________ 
being registered shareholder(s) of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) hereby authorize 
the Company to directly credit cash dividends declared by it, if any, from time to time in the below mentioned bank account. 

- -

Name of the Shareholder 

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.  

CNIC No. 

Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder) 

NTN (in case of corporate entity) 

Land Line Phone Number 

Cell Number 

Valid E-mail address 

(i)  Shareholder's detail 

Title of the Bank Account  

Type of Bank Account 

IBAN 

Bank's Name 

Branch Name and Branch Code No. 

Full mailing address and contact No. 

of Branch 

(ii) Shareholder's bank detail 

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and I/We shall intimate the changes in the above-mentioned information to the 
Share Registrar and Company as soon as these occur.

I/We hereby further authorize Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the Company along with 
email address mentioned. 

Signature of the Shareholder Signature of Joint shareholder 1 Signature of Joint shareholder 2 Signature of Joint shareholder 3





For accessing Investor Relations of PICT long on to http://www.pict.com.pk/InvestorRelations.aspx



Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 
Registered & Terminal Office:

Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi, Pakistan.

UAN: (+9221) 111 11 PICT (7428) Fax: (+9221) 32854815

www.pict.com.pk 
A publication of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited. All Rights reserved. 

An ICTSI Group Company 
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